
FOREST PRESERVE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE AGENDA -- 12/13/2022 at 9:30 AM 
1504 3rd Ave Rock Island, IL – County Building, Third Floor Chambers 

The Rock Island County Forest Preserve Commission will meet at the above date and time in 
County Board Chambers on the third floor of the County Building, 1504 Third Ave, Rock Island, IL. 
Per section 7(e) of the State of Illinois Open Meetings Act, Members of the County Board may 
attend the meeting remotely, if they prefer. To attend the meeting by Zoom dial 312-626-6799 and entering Meeting 
ID: 949 386 328 when prompted. 

I. Roll Call:

II. Old Business:  Executive Committee minutes from November 15, 2022* pg 2

III. Claims:*
Niabi Zoo Fund claims @ $108,669.57 pg 14
Dev of Forest & Const Imp Fund claims @ $975.00 pg 28

Forest Preserve General Fund claims @ $64,726.64 pg 5
Liability Fund claims @ $55.50 pg 27
Treasurer’s Disbursements $607,733.47 pg 29

Claims and Treasurer’s Disbursements totaling $782,160.45 

IV. Transfers:
No Transfers for consideration this month

V. Resolutions:
Consider a resolution pertaining to Niabi Zoo Fund FY 23 appropriation amendments-Regional Development Authority
Grant Appropriations in the amount of $32,500* pg 30
Consider a resolution pertaining to Niabi Zoo Fund FY 23 appropriation amendments-African Painted Dog Grant
Appropriations in the amount of $15,006.25* pg 31
Consider a resolution pertaining to Development of Forests & Construction of Improvements Fund FY 23 appropriation
amendments-Illiniwek Recreation Trail Grant Appropriations in the amount of $975.00* pg 32
Consider a resolution regarding the Designation of Banks or Other Depositories* pg 33

VI. Ordinances:
No Ordinances to consider this month

VII. Public comment:

VIII   Other Business: 
 Consider 2023 regular meeting dates and holidays* pg 35
Consider Jeffrey Craver, Director, as the District’s FOIA Officer for calendar year 2023 
Consider bids and recommendations for Niabi Zoo African Painted Dog Exhibit
Discussion on Public Act 102-1088 known as the Decennial Committees on Local Government 
Efficiency Act* pg 37
Review and discussion of Forest Preserve Commission General Policy & Procedures* pg 41 
Review and discussion of District Public Comment Procedure* pg 54
Review and discussion of Forest Preserve Commissioner Creed & Code of Conduct Policy* pg 56 
Review and consider the Draft of FY 22 Annual Financial Report* pg 59

Other business as needed 
IX. Reports:   Approval of all routine reports:
District Budget Performance Report* pg 119
April Palmer – Auditor’s Reports* pg 137
Mike Petersen - Illiniwek report* pg 145
Lee Jackson – Niabi Zoo report * pg 148

Nick Camlin – Treasurer’s Report* pg 132
Todd Collins pg 143 & Jay Verstraete pg 144 – Indian Bluff Reports* 
Ben Mills – Loud Thunder report* pg 146
Jeff Craver – Director’s report* pg 154

The Forest Preserve Executive Committee may enter a Closed Session for the following: 
5 ILCS 120/2 (c) (1) – The appointment employment, compensation, discipline, performance, or dismissal of specific employees of the public body or 
legal counsel for the public body, including hearing testimony on a complaint lodged against an employee of the public body or against legal counsel for 
the public body to determine its validity.  
5 ILCS 120/2 (c) (2) – Collective negotiating matters between the public body and its employees or their representatives, or deliberations concerning 
salary schedules for one or more classes of employees. 

5 ILCS 120/2 (c) (5)-Discussion of the purchase or lease of real property for the use of the public body, including meetings held for the purpose of 

discussing whether a particular parcel should be acquired. 

* items are in members’ packets

The next meeting of the Forest Preserve Executive Committee will be held at Rock Island County Building,
Rock Island, Illinois on Tuesday, January 10th , 2023 at 9:30 AM. 

001



November 15, 2022 Page 1 

FOREST PRESERVE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MINUTES 

NOVEMBER 15, 2022 
 
                  

PRESENT: Committee members - K. Swanson, A. Normoyle(via Zoom), E. 
Sowards(via zoom), J. Woods, L. Moreno, D. Cremeens, R. Simmer. 
 

ABSENT:  
 

ALSO PRESENT: Jeff Craver, District Director; Lee Jackson, Niabi Zoo Director; Ben 
Mills, Loud Thunder Ranger; Louisa Ewert, Treasurer; Kurt Davis, Information Systems. 

 
President Swanson called the monthly meeting of the Forest Preserve Executive 
Committee to order at 9:31 AM on Tuesday, November 15, 2022, in the third floor 
chambers of the County Building, Rock Island, Illinois. 
 
K. Swanson, A. Normoyle(via Zoom), J. Woods, D. Cremeens, E. Sowards(via zoom), 
L. Moreno, R. Simmer. 

TOTAL PRESENT 7 

TOTAL ABSENT 0 

 
President Swanson called for a motion approving the October Committee meeting. 
 

MOTION: Dr. Simmer moved to approve the October Committee meeting minutes. Ms. 
Woods seconded the motion. 
 
Roll was called: 
K. Swanson, A. Normoyle, E. Sowards, J. Woods, L. Moreno, D. Cremeens, R. 
Simmer. 

TOTAL YES  7 

TOTAL NO  0 
 
Motion carried. 
 
President Swanson called for a motion to approve the claims and treasurer’s 
disbursements in the amount of $281,244.89. 
 

MOTION: Dr. Moreno moved to approve the claims and treasurer’s disbursements in 
the amount of $281,244.89. Dr. Simmer seconded the motion. 
 

MOTION: Dr. Moreno moved to adopt the previous roll call. Mr. Cremeens seconded 
the motion. 
 
Motion carried. 
[] 
 

002



November 15, 2022 Page 2 

President Swanson called for a motion to approve the resolutions regarding fiscal year 
2023 Niabi Zoo Prairie Dog Grant Appropriations, African Painted Dog Grant 
Appropriations, and Development of Forests & Construction of Improvements Fund 
Illiniwek Recreation Trail Grant Appropriations. 
 

MOTION: Dr. Simmer moved to approve the resolutions regarding fiscal year 2023 
Niabi Zoo Prairie Dog Grant Appropriations, African Painted Dog Grant Appropriations, 
and Development of Forests & Construction of Improvements Fund Illiniwek Recreation 
Trail Grant Appropriations. Dr. Moreno seconded the motion. 
 

MOTION: Dr. Simmer moved to adopt the previous roll call. Mr. Cremeens seconded 
the motion. 
 
Motion carried. 
 
President Swanson called for a motion to approve the Abatement Ordinance Pursuant 
to Ordinance #11-01-17 in the amount of $345,427.50, and Abatement Ordinance 
Pursuant to ordinance #2016-0401 in the amount of $353,700.00. 
 

MOTION: Dr. Moreno moved to approve the Abatement Ordinance Pursuant to 
Ordinance #11-01-17 in the amount of $345,427.50, and Abatement Ordinance 
Pursuant to ordinance #2016-0401 in the amount of $353,700.00. Mr. Cremeens 
seconded the motion. 
 

MOTION: Dr. Moreno moved to adopt the previous roll call. Ms. Sowards seconded the 
motion. 
 
Motion carried. 
 
President Swanson made three calls for public comment. 
 
There were no requests for public comment. 
 
President Swanson called for a motion to approve the recommended bid for the Niabi 
Zoo Prairie Dog Exhibit. 
 

MOTION: Dr. Moreno moved to approve the recommended bid for the Niabi Zoo Prairie 
Dog Exhibit. Ms. Woods seconded the motion. 
 
President Swanson stated that two bids came in for the project, but neither is what staff 
would consider to be wholly complete. The first bid is from the Henley Group. They 
have some steps that they need to take between awarding the bid and getting the 
contract in accordance with our responsible bidder resolution. Likewise, the other 
bidder, Estes, also did not submit a complete bid. What Mr. Craver would like to 
propose is to provisionally award the project to the low bidder, Henley Group, but 
contingent on completion of all necessary requirements by the time the contract is 

003



November 15, 2022 Page 3 

awarded. That would be thirty days. Then in the same motion it would be stated that in 
absence of the completion of the steps by Henley Group, Estes would be awarded the 
bid and given the chance to complete the steps. 
 

AMEND: Dr. Moreno moved to amend the motion to approve the low bid provided the 
Henley Group complete the steps for the bid in thirty days; if the Henley Group fails to 
complete the steps for the bid, then the bid will go to Estes Construction who will also 
have thirty days to complete the steps for the bid. Dr. Simmer seconded the amended 
motion. 
 

MOTION: Ms. Woods moved to adopt the previous roll call. Mr. Cremeens seconded 
the motion. 
 
Motion carried. 
 
President Swanson asked if any Committee member had questions on the routine 
reports provided in the packet. 
 
No one had any questions. 
 
Mr. Craver informed the Committee that an endowment had been established for 
Amôwa Forest Preserve. The Larry Toppart Memorial Fund. 
 
President Swanson called for a motion to approve the routine reports of the District 
Department heads. 
 

MOTION: Dr. Simmer moved to approve the routine reports of the District Department 
heads. Ms. Woods seconded the motion. 
 

MOTION: Dr. Moreno moved to adopt the previous roll call. Mr. Cremeens seconded 
the motion. 
 
Motion carried. 
 
President Swanson called the meeting adjourned at 9:45 AM. 
 
Submitted by:  
Cassie Sullivan 
Forest Preserve Administrative Assistant 

004



005



006



007



008



009



010



011



012



013



014



015



016



017



018



019



020



021



022



023



024



025



026



027



028



029



030



031



032



033



034



035



036



037



038



039



040



041



042



043



044



045



046



047



048



049



050



051



052



053



054



055



056



057



058



059



060



061



062



063



064



065



066



067



068



069



070



071



072



073



074



075



076



077



078



079



080



081



082



083



084



085



086



087



088



089



090



091



092



093



094



095



096



097



098



099



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



150



151



152



153



154



155



156



157



158



159



160



161



162



163



164



165



166



167



168



169



170



171




